
November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 1 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF FERNDALE – HUMBOLDT COUNTY CALIFORNIA – U.S.A. 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Location: City Hall 
834 Main Street 
Ferndale CA 95536 

Date: November 1, 2012 

 Time: 7 pm 

 Posted: 10/25/12  

 
We welcome you to the meeting. Members of the Public may be heard on any business item on this 

Agenda before or during the City Council consideration of the item. The public may also directly address the City 
Council on any item of interest to the public that is not on the Agenda during the public comment time; however, 
the City Council generally cannot take action on an item not on the agenda. 

A person addressing the City Council will be limited to five (5) minutes unless the Mayor of the City 
Council grants a longer period of time. While not required, we would appreciate it if you would identify yourself 
with your name and address when addressing the Council. 

This City endeavors to be ADA compliant. Should you require assistance with written information or 
access to the facility, or a hearing amplification, please call 786-4224 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

TO SPEAK ON ANY ISSUE, BE ACKNOWLEDGED BY THE MAYOR BEFORE PROCEEDING TO THE PODIUM, 
STATE YOUR NAME AND ADDRESS FOR THE RECORD (optional), AND DIRECT YOUR COMMENTS ONLY TO THE 
COUNCIL. 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – Mayor 
2. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 
3. ROLL CALL –City Clerk 
4. CEREMONIAL –  

a. Oath of Office to Lacy Pedrotti, Deputy City Clerk  .........................................  Page 3 
b. Great American Smokeout ............................................................................  Page 4 

5. MODIFICATIONS TO THE AGENDA 
6. STUDY SESSIONS   ......................................................................................................  None 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT. (This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on 

any matter not on this agenda and over which the Council has jurisdiction. Items 
requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be placed on the next 
regular agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of 
the Council that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an 
urgent nature requiring immediate action. This portion of the meeting will be 
approximately 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each speaker given no 
more than five minutes.) ............................................................................................  Page 6 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR. (All matters listed under this category are considered to 
be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. Unless a 
specific request is made by a Councilmember, staff or the public, the Consent 
Calendar will not be read. There will be no separate discussion of these items. 
However, if discussion is required, that item will be removed from the Consent 
Calendar and considered separately under “Call Items.”) 

a. Acceptance of Accounts Payable ...................................................................  Page 6 
b. Approval of previous minutes: October 3, 2012 .............................................  Page 19 

9. CALL ITEM 
10. PRESENTATION / Community Forum ..........................................................................  None 

  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 2 

 

11. BUSINESS 
a.  
b. Resolution No. 2012-34 Authorizing expenditure of $600 as a stipend for 

City Green Sculpture......................................................................................  Page 22 
c. Resolution 2012-33 Authorizing the expenditure of $1000 from the 

General Fund to Support Expanded Airline Service in Humboldt County. .......  Page 25 
d. Resolution 2012-32 Authorizing disposal of redundant and obsolete 

files. ..............................................................................................................  Page 27 
e. Set date for special meeting to present Guy Fieri with a Key to the City 

along with Proclamations and Letters of support. ..........................................  Page 30 
12. CORRESPONDENCE ....................................................................................................  Page 32 
13. REPORTS 

a. City Manager Staff Report and Community Events.........................................  Page 39 
b. Commissions / Committees and others 

i. Design Review...................................................................................  Page 50 
ii. Planning Commission ........................................................................  Page 53 

iii. Sign Committee ................................................................................  Page 54 
c. Council Reports and Comment 

i. Humboldt Bay Fire ............................................................................  Page 62 
ii. HCAOG  Minutes  ..............................................................................  Page 63 

iii. HMRA Minutes .................................................................................  None 
iv. HWMA Miinutes  ..............................................................................  Page 66 
v. RCEA Minutes  ..................................................................................  Page 75 
vi. RREDC Minutes .................................................................................  Page 77 

 
14. ADJOURN ...................................................................................................................  Page 78 

 
This notice is posted in compliance with Government Code §54954.2. 
The next Regular Meeting of the Ferndale City Council will be held on 

THURSDAY, December 6, 2012 in the Auditorium of City Hall at 7:00pm 
  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 3 

 

 

 

Section 1 

Call Meeting to Order 
 

Section 2 
Pledge Allegiance 

 
Section 3 
Roll Call 

 
Section 4 

Ceremonial 
Oath of Office for Lacy Pedrotti, Deputy City Clerk 

Great American Smokeout 
 

  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 4 

 

                   City of Ferndale     INCORPORATED 1893 

 
PROCLAMATION 

In Recognition and Support of  
THE GREAT AMERICAN SMOKEOUT 

November 15, 2012 
 
Whereas, the American Cancer Society encourages all tobacco users to join the Great American 

Smokeout and quit for at least one day; and 

 

Whereas, more people in Humboldt County die every year from tobacco-related diseases than 

die from AIDS, alcohol, car crashes, fires, illegal drugs, murders, and suicides combined; and 

 

Whereas, exposure to secondhand smoke is known to cause heart disease, lung cancer, asthma 

attacks, and ear infections; and  

 

Whereas, studies have shown that children living in multi-unit housing (apartments) where 

smoking is permitted are more exposed to secondhand smoke, even when nobody smokes in 

their unit; and 

 

Whereas, efforts to reduce smoking and exposure to secondhand smoke in California have saved 

Californians’ more than $86 billion in health care expenditures; and 

 

Whereas, more than half of adult “ever-smokers” have already quit; and  

 

Whereas, cities around the world with smoke-free laws see an appreciable reduction in hospital 

admittances for heart attacks in the months and years after such laws are passed; and  

 

Whereas, in Humboldt County 8 out of 10 smokers want to quit tobacco, and there are several 

free resources available to assist them. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED that the City Council of the City of Ferndale 

hereby recognizes and supports the American Cancer Society’s GREAT AMERICAN 

SMOKEOUT, on November 15, 2012 in the City of Ferndale and encourages all citizens who 

smoke, or use chew/dip tobacco, to demonstrate to themselves and their children that they can 

quit using tobacco by joining the American Cancer Society’s Great American Smokeout.   

 

Dated: November 1, 2012 

_______________________________ 

Mayor Jeff Farley 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 5 

 

  Section 5 

Modifications to the Agenda 
 

Section 6 
Study Sessions 

 

Section 7 

Public Comment 
 

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda and 
over which the Council has jurisdiction. 
 
Items requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be placed on the next regular 
agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rd of the Council (three of the 
five members) that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgent nature 
requiring immediate action. 
 
This portion of the meeting will be approximately 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each 
speaker given no more than five minutes. Please state your name and address for the record. 
(This is optional.) 

Section 8 

Consent Agenda 
 
All matters listed under this category are considered to be routine by the City Council and will 
be enacted by one motion.  
 
Is there anyone on the Council, Staff or the public that would like to pull an item off the 
Consent Agenda for scrutiny? Those items will be considered separately under “Call Items.” 
  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 6 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 7 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 8 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 9 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 10 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 11 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 12 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 13 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 14 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 15 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 16 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 17 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 18 

 

  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 19 

 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA   
City Council Minutes for October 4, 2012 

 

Mayor Jeffrey Farley called the Regular City Council Meeting to order at 7:00PM. Present were 
Councilmen Ken Mierzwa, John Maxwell and Stuart Titus, along with staff City Manager Jay Parrish, City 
Clerk Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, Administrative Assistant Lacy Pedrotti, and City Engineers Praj White and 
David Caisse.  Those present pledged allegiance to the flag. The City Clerk called roll call.  
 
Ceremonial: The City Clerk gave the Oath of Office to Michael Sweeney and welcomed him to the City 
Council. Mayor Farley also welcomed him as he took his place at the dais.  
 
The City Clerk read the Proclamation for Guy Fieri, which will be presented to him by Mayor Farley when 
Mr. Fieri is in Ferndale at Thanksgiving. 
 
Under Modifications to the agenda, Councilman Maxwell asked to make an announcement: Councilman 
Maxwell, as a member of Humboldt Waste Management Authority, relayed the information that HWMA 
is setting up a Planning Advisory Committee which will meet once a month. He is asking for volunteers. 
 
Consent Calendar:  Newly appointed Councilman Sweeney abstained from voting on the consent 
calendar. MOTION: (Mierzwa/Titus) Accept Accounts Payable and approve the minutes from the 
September 6, 2012 meeting. Unanimous.  
 
Presentation: Mr. Don Ehnebuske, Executive Director of RREDC gave a presentation on why it is 
important to support efforts to get another airline to service the Eureka-Arcata Airport in McKinleyville. 
He asked that the City Council consider a donation of $1000. This will be put on the November agenda. 
 
Green Waste:  MOTION: (Titus/Sweeney) Approve Resolution 2012-26 Accepting a one year extension to 

the MOU with Eel River Disposal concerning Green Waste Curbside Collection Program. All in favor. 

 

Pedestrian Improvement Project: MOTION: (Sweeney/Maxwell) Approve Resolution Number 2012-28 

Approving the Execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 005-N to Administering Agency-State 

Agreement No. 01-5097R to allocate $18,000 of Federal Funds to the PA&ED and PS&E phases of the 

Pedestrian Improvement Project - Phase 2. All in favor. 

 

Washington St. and Schley Ave: MOTION: (Maxwell/Titus) Approve Resolution 2012-30 Authorizing the 

City Manager to execute an agreement for improvements at the intersection of Washington St. and 

Schley Ave. and authorize the submittal of the Notice of CEQA Exemption. All in favor 

 

4th St and Shaw Ave: MOTION: (Mierzwa/Titus) Approve Resolution 2012-31 Authorizing the City 

Manager to move forward with the final design, bid process and construction, as well as execute a 

construction contract for the drainage Improvements for the intersection of 4th St and Shaw Ave; 

authorize the submittal of the Notice of CEQA Exemption. All in favor. 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 20 

 

5th Street Drainage Improvements: MOTION: (Titus/Maxwell) Approve Resolution 2012-29 Giving 

authorization to move forward with the final design, bid process and construction for the drainage 

Improvements on 5th St near the Ferndale housing complex and authorize the submittal of the Notice of 

CEQA Exemption. In addition, authorize the City Manager to execute a construction contract dependent 

upon environmental review clearance. All in favor. 

 

Change in Police Department budget: MOTION: (Maxwell/Sweeney) Recognize receipt of $2000.00 from 

PARSAC, our risk management authority, to pay Lexipol LLC for the police department’s policy manual, 

updates and daily training bulletins/tests. All in favor. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:20PM. The next regular Council Meeting is scheduled for November 1, 2012 

at 7PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Nancy Kaytis-Slocum 

City Clerk 

 

 

  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 21 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Section 9 

CALL ITEMS 
 

These are items pulled from the consent agenda  
for discussion and a separate motion. 

 

 
 

Section 10 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 

 

Section 11 

 

BUSINESS 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 22 

 

Meeting Date: November 1, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11A 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution No. 2012-34 Authorizing expenditure of $600 as a stipend 
for City Green Sculpture 

Presented By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required: Approve Resolution No. 2012-34 Authorizing expenditure of $600 From 

The Park Fund as a stipend for City Green Sculpture 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve spending up to $600 from the Park Fund for a stipend to support the Humboldt State 

University competitive project for a sculpture in the City Green. 

DISCUSSION 

City Manager has been working with the HSU Art Department in an effort to replace the 

sculpture we had in the City Green last year. Those efforts have resulted in a prospectus 

(attached) and should result in a creation available to us on May 15, 2013. That sculpture will 

be available to us for one year, at which time our hopes are that it will be replaced with another 

sculpture through the HSU program. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Parks Fund $600 (21624284.3) 

  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 23 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-34  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE AUTHORIZING EXPENDITURE OF $600 

FROM THE PARKS FUND TO AS A STIPEND FOR SCULPTURE ON THE CITY GREEN 

 

WHEREAS, The Humboldt State University Art Department has agreed to present a competition 

open to HSU Sculpture Students or Groups of current HSU sculpture students; and 

WHEREAS, The HSU Art Department will accept written proposals, drawings, resume and 3D 

models; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Ferndale will benefit from the competition in that the Sculpture will be 

displayed at the City Green in front of City Hall for a year, and 

WHEREAS, At the end of a year, the sculpture will be replaced with another from HSU Art 

Department students; and 

WHEREAS, The City of Ferndale wishes to provide a stipend to help in this endeavor. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Ferndale authorizes the 

expenditure of $600 from the Parks Fund. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale on November 1, 2012, by the 

following vote: 

Ayes:   
Noes: 
Abstain: 
Absent:  
 
 
 
      _________________________________  
      Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
_______________________  
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 
 

  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 24 

 

  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 25 

 

Meeting Date: November 1, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11B 

Agenda Item Title: Approve Resolution 2012-33 Authorizing the expenditure of $1000 
from the General Fund to Support Expanded Airline Service in 
Humboldt County. 

Presented By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required: Approve Resolution 2012-33 Authorizing the expenditure of $1000 from 

the General Fund to Support Expanded Airline Service in Humboldt 

County. 

 

RECOMMENDATION  

Approve Resolution 2012-33 Authorizing the expenditure of $1000 from the General Fund to 

Support Expanded Airline Service in Humboldt County. 

 

DISCUSSION 

During our October meeting, Don Ehnebuske, Executive Director of RREDC gave a presentation 

on why it is important to support efforts to get another airline to service the Eureka-Arcata 

Airport in McKinleyville. He requested a donation from the City to support those efforts. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$1000 from the General Fund 

  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 26 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-32  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE AUTHORIZING $1000 FROM THE 

GENERAL FUND TO SUPPORT EXPANDED AIRLINE SERVICE IN HUMBOLDT COUNTY 

 

WHEREAS, Humboldt’s air service, provided by United Express, is subject to frequent delays, 

cancellations and high ticket prices; and 

WHEREAS, An airport without good air service means a less-connected community; and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Transportation awards $750,000 for Minimum Revenue Guarantee 

provided that the community matches with $250,000, and 

WHEREAS, The Headwaters Fund pledges $125,000; and 

WHEREAS, The City of Ferndale wishes to provide some funding to help in this endeavor. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Ferndale authorizes the 

expenditure of $1000 from the General Fund. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale on November 1, 2012, by the 

following vote: 

Ayes:   
Noes: 
Abstain: 
Absent:  
 
 
 
      _________________________________  
      Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
_______________________  
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 
 

  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 27 

 

Meeting Date: November 1, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11C 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2012-32 Authorizing disposal of redundant and obsolete 
files. 

Presented By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required: Approve Resolution 2012-32 Authorizing disposal of redundant and 

obsolete files. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Resolution 2012-32 Authorizing disposal of redundant and obsolete files. 

DISCUSSION 

 

In the year 2000, the Ferndale City Clerk’s Office began using the Records Management 

Guidelines as administered by the California State Archives Department, and as a result, today 

has identified numerous records that can be destroyed, freeing up valuable file and storage 

space. 

Those records are listed as an attachment to Resolution 2012-32. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-32  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE AUTHORIZING DISPOSAL OF 

REDUNDANT AND OBSOLETE FILES 

 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 12236(a) states: “The Secretary of State shall establish the 

Local Government Records Program to be administered by the State Archives to establish 

guidelines for local government retention and to provide archival support to local agencies in this 

state;” and 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk’s Office has adopted the “Local Government Records Retention 

Guidelines” recommended by the Secretary of State’s Archives Division; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Ferndale has redundant and obsolete files that need to be destroyed, and 

WHEREAS, Government Code 34090 allows for destruction of Accounts Payable and Accounts 

Receivable, and the Retention Guidelines call for destruction four years after the latest date; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code 34090.7 allows for destruction of taped meetings in two years as 

long as there are written minutes; and 

WHEREAS, the redundant and obsolete files take up needed file space. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Ferndale directs the City 

Clerk’s Office to properly dispose of the redundant and obsolete files as listed on the attached 

inventory. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale on November 1, 2012, by the 

following vote: 

Ayes:   
Noes: 
Abstain: 
Absent:  
 
 
 
      _________________________________  
      Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
_______________________  
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 
  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 29 

 

Name of record Date destroy 

Financial records 84-85 1990 

Financial records 85-86 1991 

Financial records 87-88 1993 

Financial records 88-89  1994 

Financial records 89-90 1995 

Financial records 1990-91 1996 

Financial records 1991-92 1997 

Financial records 1993-94 1999 

Financial records 94-95 2000 

Financial records 95-96 2001 

Financial records 96-97 2002 

Financial records 97-98 2003 

Financial records 98-99 2004 

Financial records 99-00 1 of 2 2005 

Financial records 99-00 2 of 2 2005 

Financial records 00-01 1 of 2  2006 

Financial records 00-01 2 of 2 2006 

Financial records 01-02 1 of 2 2007 

Financial records 01-02 2 of 2 2007 

Financial records 02-03 2008 

Expenses 03-04 2009 

Financial records 2002-03 and 2003-04 2009 

Financial records 2004-05 2010 

Revenue expenses 05-06 2011 

Revenue expenses 06-07 2012 

Tapes / Cassettes 79-82 1984 

Tapes / Cassettes 82-84 1986 

Tapes / Cassettes  85-87 1989 

Tapes / Cassettes Tapes 88-89 1991 

Tapes / Cassettes 90-92 1994 

Tapes  of CC ad PC meetings 2006-2007 2009 

 

  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 30 

 

Meeting Date: November 1, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11D 

Agenda Item Title: Set date for special meeting 

Presented By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required: Set date for special meeting to present Guy Fieri with a Key to the City 

along with Proclamations and Letters of support. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a special meeting on Friday, November 23, 2012 

 

DISCUSSION 

Guy Fieri will be in Ferndale over the Thanksgiving Holiday. The Mayor would like to call a 

special meeting on Friday, November 23, 2012 to present Guy Fieri with a Key to the City along 

with Proclamations and Letters of Support. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$50 from City Promotional Fund 

 

  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 31 

 

Section 12 

CORRESPONDENCE 

Correspondence Files are available for review at City Hall during 
regular business hours, Monday through Thursday, 9am to 4pm. 

 

    



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 32 

 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 33 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 34 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 35 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 36 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 37 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 38 

 

 

  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 39 

 

Section 13 

REPORTS 
 

Section 13a:  City Manager Staff Report 
 
CITY MANAGER: 
 
Meetings and Projects 

 Kiwanis meeting 1st and 3rd Tuesday of the month at 4:30 pm 

 Discussions with Karen Clower related to training seminars available  for my inclusion in the County 
Academy.  

 City Council- October 4th – 7:00-8:30 pm  

 SRWC – October 9th- 2:00-5:00 pm 

 Design Review- Oct 4th, 11th, 18th, 25th -8:30 am 

 RCEA  Board meeting – Oct 15th -  3:15-5:00 pm  

 City Manager meeting - Oct 18th - 3:00-5:00 pm  

 Meeting with Donna Chambers (RCD) regarding Mike Thompson and Jimmy Smith event on Sept 2 

 Met with PW regarding daily routine. Focus this month was on Francis Creek maintenance and 
drainage projects we want to complete before the weather changes this fall. We have a collapsed 
culvert on Washington that needs remedied, as well as a drainage problem on 5th Street.   

 Number of conversations with non-profit representative regarding condition of carpet in Library and 
a submission of a grant proposal for replacement. We were successful and the library is in the 
process of scheduling the installation of the carpet. We should be very proud of our library which 
one of the only libraries in the county that is partially funded by their City. In the last several years 
we have put a new roof, a new handrail system, painted the outside of the building, and replaced all 
the lighting fixtures inside through grants. With other grant money we will begin to replace the 
carpet around the Thanksgiving holiday. 

 Number of conversations and discussions with RCD personnel regarding our drainage committee 
meetings and having them attend to discuss the Salt River Restoration Project and the long term 
drainage improvements throughout the valley. 

 Met with City Managers and CAO to go over the process of transfer of new ownership of Suddenlink. 
Access Humboldt is continuing to follow up with the Buske Group and Suddenlink to Suddenlink’s 
ownership transfer. The Buske Group feels that we will be able to plan for action steps which will 
require each jurisdiction to adopt a resolution approving a Transfer Agreement. They are working on 
the conditions of that agreement. The estimated finish of that process will be sometime around the 
end of the month. We will have this agreement in front of the Council probably in December. 

 ERD contract negotiations: Karen Smith and I met a few times to go over our greenwaste program 
and she said that there was no desire on ERD’s side to increase rates for the service at this time, and 
I have had no reports or complaints about the program since it began. The Council approved this last 
month and I am still talking with ERD about a reasonable recycling rebate policy associated with our 
franchise agreement.  

 Daily meetings with chief regarding police activities and community safety issues. 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 40 

 

 Several conversations with John Driscoll regarding Ferndale issues. 

 Conversations with Wastewater operators regarding compliance related, personnel related issues 
and scheduling. Signed a contract to dispose of our sludge in compliant way that is a considerable 
savings compared to previous procedure. 

 Daily interaction with Staff regarding workload. Finance Supervisor is still out recovering from 
surgery and we are covering this position by having everyone else take over tasks associated with 
that position.  Administrative Assistant is doing an admirable job in covering the financial aspects. 
City Clerk is also contributing to our effort in maintaining our level of service to the public and 
council, planning commission, and committees.  

 Numerous conversations regarding Salt River Project with Watershed Council members, RCD 
representatives, council members and citizens. We continue work with property owners in effort to 
get support for the project. We now have all property owners on board and are meeting with 
Coastal Commission in hopes of getting the development permit. 

 The Fresnel lens is now resting comfortably at the climate controlled room at the Fairgrounds and 
the Shining Light foundation is taking a little time off before we get back into the fundraising mode 
trying to raise enough to reassemble the lens in the museum. 

 Numerous meetings with Gerald Silva related to possible agreement on Russ Park access. David 
Yarrington is working with Planwest and putting together an estimate of costs associated with a 
possible trade of some land that would allow Russ Park enthusiasts to enter the park just past the 
water company on Eugene Street. In analyzing the procedure with the County it was pointed out 
that the Siva property was under the Williamson Act and that would complicate the process and 
that we might consider waiting until that came out of the Act in 2014. We are in the process of 
talking to all parties to get consensus before moving forward.  We are developing a timeline for a 
possible lot line adjustment.   

 Numerous meetings with individual councilmen and the mayor regarding City issues, and updates 
about representation on the various joint power authorities. 

 Sculpture in City Green was taken away at the end of April and we are trying to replace with a 
student sculpture from HSU. I am working with Sondra Schwetman of the Art Department in an 
effort to start some type of rotational exhibit. She is excited about the possibilities and is in the 
process of putting a proposal together that will possibly allow the City to have a sculpture from HSU 
students on a rotational basis. We are looking forward to participating with HSU on this project. I 
met with Sondra on September 5th, and we have started the process. We have received the 
prospectus from HSU and we will have our ceremony and unveiling of the competition on May 15th. 

 The Sign Ordinance Committee is making good progress. The current ordinance and procedures are 
still in effect and businesses must still go through Design Review and procedures for placement of 
signs and related issues. Staff has sent a letter to business district updating our progress and 
reminding them that there were non-compliant situations before we started this process and that 
although there may be changes in what is and is not allowed, we will be enforcing whatever the 
Council approves at the end of this process.  It should be understood that we are probably six 
months out from bringing this to the council. We are hoping to have an article regarding the sign 
ordinance update in a couple weeks. 

 Discussions with City Planner regarding Design Review and planning issues.  Planning Commission 
continues to have presentations related to the Safety Element. 

 Several conversations with Cybelle Immitt who is a senior planner for the County. Cybelle led a 
coalition of cities and agencies back in 2008 through a process to develop Hazard Mitigation Plans 
(HMP) for those agencies and the County. Those migration plans had a shelf life of 5 years and now 
we are required to update our previous plans.  The goal of this planning effort is to update data for 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 41 

 

the natural hazards that could impact the planning area to determine the level of risk, update the 
identification of actions and activities that can reduce any losses from those hazards, and 
reinvigorate the coordinated process of implementing the plan. Back in of October of last year the 
Council approved a match of $2,500 dollars to continue our participation in this program to update 
our HMP. The fiscal match was waved as a consequence of representation on the steering 
committee. We are on schedule at this point but the steering committee will probably start our 
monthly meetings within the next month. 

 
 
CITY CLERK ACTIVITY 
 
Meetings  

 Daily meetings with City Manager regarding work schedule. 

 Design Review meetings 10/4/12 and 10/11 

 City Council meeting 10/4/12. 
 
Projects 

 Counter and phones. 

 Pick up mail, copy, distribute and file. 

 Continue to work with InLight Fitness regarding MOU with the city for the use of the Community 
Center for a reasonable fee of $5.00 per hour. InLight Fitness has signed an MOU and will be paying 
for their hourly use of the community center. 

 ERMA Training online. Slowly catching up on missed training while on Family Leave last year. 

 Filed September report of Building or Zoning Permits issued for new privately-owned housing units. 

 Prepared City Council Handbook for Michael Sweeney, made extras for new council people for after 
election. Researched various government codes. 

 Prepared City Council Agenda packet for 10/4/12 

 Prepared Design Review Agenda packets for 9/20/12, 9/27/12, 10/4/12, 10/11/12. Prepared 
minutes for all meetings, posted to 10/25/12 packet for acceptance. 

 Worked with write in candidate on paperwork, brought signatures and paperwork to the Elections 
Office. 

 Spoke with City Manager and City Planner regarding setback interpretations. Wrote Plot Plan Memo 
regarding a building permit application for a garage. 

 City Council Meeting Follow-up 
o Printed, signed, posted online and filed September 6, 2012 minutes 
o Filed Michael Sweeney’s Oath of Office 
o Filed Resolution 2012-26 Accepting a one year extension to the MOU with Eel River Disposal 

concerning Green Waste Curbside Collection Program. Copy for ERD Agreement file 
o Filed Resolution Number 2012-28 Approving the Execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 005-

N to Administering Agency-State Agreement No. 01-5097R to allocate $18,000 of Federal Funds 
to the PA&ED and PS&E phases of the Pedestrian Improvement Project - Phase 2. Original signed 
copy to City Engineers along with two signed copies of the agreement. Copy to Transportation 
file. 

o Filed Resolution 2012-29 Giving authorization to move forward with the final design, bid process 
and construction for the drainage Improvements on 5th St near the Ferndale housing complex 
and authorize the submittal of the Notice of CEQA Exemption. In addition, authorize the City 
Manager to execute a construction contract dependent upon environmental review clearance. 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 42 

 

Original Signed copy to City Engineers along with Original of CEQA Exemption, Copy to Drainage 
File – 5th Street near Ferndale Housing. 

o Filed Resolution 2012-30 Authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement for 
improvements at the intersection of Washington St. and Schley Ave. and authorize the submittal 
of the Notice of CEQA Exemption. Original signed copy to City Engineers along with CEQA 
Exemption. Filed Drainage – Washington & Schley 

o Filed Resolution 2012-31 Authorizing the City Manager to move forward with the final design, 
bid process and construction, as well as execute a construction contract for the drainage 
Improvements for the intersection of 4th St and Shaw Ave; authorize the submittal of the Notice 
of CEQA Exemption. Original signed copy to City Engineers. Filed Drainage – 4th and Shaw. 

 Prepared City Council packet for November 1, 2012 meeting 

 Election Duties: Received paperwork for Write In Candidate; Posted Notice of Nominees 

 Prepared Sign Committee meeting packet for 10/4 and 10/18 

 Prepared Planning Commission packet for 10/17; prepared minutes 

 Discussions with City Manager and City Planner regarding Design Review for a door on Francis 
Street; commercial buildings on Main Street; 

 Sent letters to all business owners in Ferndale regarding the Sign Ordinance Committee progress. 
Will also send to property owners of commercial buildings. 

 Training Administrative Assistant on business licenses, building permits, dog licenses, encroachment 
permits. 

 

Building Permits  

410 Arlington reroof 

535 Main reroof 

591 Arlington new garage 

580 Main demo Shaw Street side stucco 

580 Main Encroachment Permit 

 

Land Use Permits  

535 Main Design Review side over <e> siding in back of bldg 

580 Main 

Design Review façade replacement w wood new trim same color paint 
sample provided replace awning as listed, replace <e> art & cultural center 
sign on front 

277 Ocean Design Review windows and siding change to reduce sq footage of window-
energy efficiency 

1182 Rose SDU 

1182 Rose Variance 

161 Francis Design Review Deck 

207 Francis Design Review Paint colors 

 
  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 43 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 
 
Meetings  

 Meeting with City Manager on Office Issues 

 Attended City Council Meeting 

Projects 

 Received Training on Accounts Payables 

 Received Training on Payroll 

 Received Training on Building Permits and Land Use Permits 

 Payroll 

 Accounts Payable 

 Accounts Receivable 

 Answer Phones, help at the Counter 

 Purchase Various Supplies 

 Receive and File August and September Financial Reports 

 LAWCX PARSAC Report 

 Reconcile Bank Account 
 
 
CITY PLANNER: 
 
Meetings, Planning & Coordination 

 Coordinated with City Manager, City Clerk, and Deputy City Clerk on planning and development 
projects.  

 Continued review of Sign Ordinance Update materials and progress. 

 Continued coordination with HCAOG on Regional Housing Needs Allocation Process. 

 Continued coordination on alleviating issues stemming from Russ Park access across private land. 

 Coordinated with City Clerk on preparation of a Plot Plan Memo regarding lack of conformance to 
Zoning Ordinance 02-02. 

 Coordinated with City Engineer on CEQA Notice of Exemption form for drainage ditch maintenance. 

 Initiated coordination and integration of the Humboldt Operational Area Multi-Agency Multi-Hazard 
Mitigation Plan Update with the City of Ferndale General Plan Safety Element Update. 

 Initiated review of application for siding repair at 535 Main St.  Prepared staff report for October 25 
Design Review meeting. 

 Continued review of application for stucco replacement at 580 Main Street.  Initiated staff report for 
November 1 Design Review Meeting.   

 Initiated review of application for variance at 1182 Rose Ave.   

 Coordinated outreach to encourage public attendance at General Plan Safety Element Update Study 
Sessions.   

 

Projects 

 General Plan Update – Prepared Draft General Plan Safety Element Fire Hazards chapter and 
presented at 10/17 Planning Commission meeting.  Arranged study session presentation by Cybelle 
Immitt of the Humboldt Fire Safe Council and Mark Rodgers of CAL FIRE.  Continued coordination for 
presentation at November 15 study session.  Prepared flyer and Public Service Announcement as 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 44 

 

part of outreach campaign to encourage public presentation at study sessions.  Prepared and 
presented Safety Element Update policy samples and staff report at 10/17 PC meeting.   

 Permit Application Process Updates – Updated the Historic District and Design Review Use Permit, 
Secondary Dwelling Unit, and Home Occupation Permit application processes to ensure consistency 
with the current Zoning Ordinance.  Prepared staff report and presented at October 17 Planning 
Commission meeting. 

• Design Review Use Permit – Prepared staff report and final draft of application process and 
presented at 9/27 meeting.  Made additional changes to application process as directed by 
Design Review Committee. 

• Secondary Dwelling – revised to conform to Zoning Ordinance §7.21 Secondary Dwelling Units: 
Creation of New Secondary Dwelling Units (amended by Ordinance 03-03 on July 14, 2003).  
Coordinated with City Clerk and City Manager. 

• Home Occupation Permit – revised to conform to Zoning Ordinance §7.11 Home Occupations 
(altered by Ordinance 08-03).  Coordinated with City Clerk and City Manager. 

 
 
CITY ENGINEER: 
Sewer Projects   
o Working on a proposed capital improvement report (sewer) 

 Met with CPO and discussed scope of projects to be included and priority ranking. Working on 
updated cost estimate and map for DRAFT submittal.  

 
Pedestrian Improvement Project  
o Rose Street: (Phase 2) 

 $250,000.00 has been granted to the City of Ferndale for Transportation Enhancement 
(pedestrian improvements) on Rose Street.    

 Design development and preparation of construction documents have been authorized.  

 Preparing the environmental study and preliminary design. 
 

Applications  
o Mr. Willis Hadley - Francis Street Project:  A letter has been forwarded to the owner regarding the 

requirements that need to be met in order for the application to be approved. Still waiting for 
response. 

 
General Engineering 
o 5th Street Flooding in front of Ferndale Housing Parcel – Solution determined 

 Conceptual design approved by the Drainage Review Committee. 

 Met with adjacent property owners and received positive feedback. 

 Contacted the Department of Fish and Game (DF&G) and the Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) 
to discuss and potential environmental concerns regarding the proposed ditch location and 
excavation. DF&G responded with no concerns, but gave suggestions to improve the wildlife 
habitat. The USACE’s response was a little unclear so we are waiting for clarification and/or a 
site visit. 

o Working on a Project Study Report for resurfacing Berding Street 

 Determining possible solutions and cost estimates based on the Pavement Condition Index 
Report. 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 45 

 

o Discussed results of the Project Initiation Document for the intersection of 4th and Shaw Ave.  

 Design has been completed. We received positive feedback from the School Superintendent and 
Police Chief and neither had any problems with the construction moving forward as soon as 
possible. 

o Working on a proposed capital improvement report (roads and drainage) 

 Met with Tim and discussed scope of projects to be included and priority ranking. Working on 
updated cost estimate and map for DRAFT submittal. 

o Roadway Functional Classification change 

 Cal Trans and FHWA have approved the map change. 
o Washington St. drainage culvert repair. 

 City Council approved the project to move forward as requested. 
 
Meetings and Committees –  
o HCAOG  

o Attend TAC meetings 
 
Reporting and Correspondence –  
o Prepared monthly staff report 
o General correspondence and meetings with City Staff  
 
 
WASTEWATER OPERATIONS: 

 Review monthly lab results 

 Review Biosolids contract with Hank Brenard Enterprises (HBE) 

 Post yearly calendar on wall and fill out important dates to remember for permitting 

 Drop off hoist trolley at Fortuna Iron for fabrication 

 OIT Ivey check with Krüger regarding media filter replacement costs 

 CPO and Operator Coppini discussed hoist procedure options for pulling influent pumps. 

 CPO continued correspondence with City Attorney and City Manager regarding HBE biosolids 
contract. 

 Correspondence with Lisa Bernard regarding Class A biosolids options 

 CPO worked on Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) for different operations within the facility and 
department.  

 Clean up files and fill out Pos 

 CPO help in the office with computer stuff 

 Delivered signed biosolids contract to HBE. The service we will get will give us a place to dispose of 
100% of our processed sludge (biosolids) for a flat rate of $600 per month. The contract will be re-
evaluated in 6 months. We were paying approximately $2-$3000 per month to dispose of the 
biosolids prior to Eel River cutting us off for regulatory reasons. Since the beginning of August we 
have been processing and drying the sludge on site at the new drying building. This allowed us to 
obtain Class A biosolids for the product we dried during the period from August to October. Class A 
biosolids may be disposed of most anywhere but must also pass a higher level of testing. HBE took 
all our Class A biosolids for free, which was approximately 3 months worth of disposal. We will now 
dry our biosolids for a couple weeks and then have it composted on-site by HBE who will then take 
full responsibility for disposing of the finished product. 

 OIT Ivey completed routine cleaning of both disc filters 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 46 

 

 Staff added road rock to the dike on the south side of the wetland area to allow septic trucks to 
drive on and dump their septage directly into the lagoon. They are currently dumping directly into 
the manhole upstream of the influent pump station but regular clogs prevent the pumps from 
running efficiently. Dumping into the lagoon allows for the larger debris to settle out before 
entering the pump station. 

 Eel River Disposal picked up empty 20 yd roll off they loaned for storing biosolids during 
construction of drying building. 

 Scheduled Preventative Maintenance (PM) for all the Flygt pumps as well as the standby generator 

 Trained Roto Rooter and Wyckoff’s in new septage dumping procedure 

 Applied reflectors along north side of dike to mark edge of driving area for septage trucks 

 Picked up completed hoist apparatus from Fortuna Iron. 

 HBE drop off containers for filling Class A biosolids for pickup 

 OIT Ivey pressure wash RAS troughs 

 CPO discussed BETA testing tool for the SEMS software we use for managing operations at the 
facility. 

 CPO gave tour of facility to the HSU engineering department 

 CPO correspondence with CWEA awards chairman regarding 2012 awards. 

 City received three awards for 2012 North Coast CWEA chapter. Plant of the Year, Supervisor of the 
Year(Jay Parrish) and Engineering Excellence(Manhard) 

 CPO and Operator Coppini tested new hoist apparatus. Still has a few kinks to work out. 

 KIEM in to interview CPO for CWEA awards 

 OIT Ivey test new cleaning solution of filters. Can be used without taking filters out of service 

 Picked up old supplies stored at PD 

 Drained pond down to pre-winter level to prepare for winter flows. Pond is now empty and will be 
used for storing excess flows that the facility cannot handle during major rain events. Treated the 
raw sewage through the facility that has been stored for the summer. Began discharging to Francis 
Creek on the 3rd. Discontinued irrigation operation for the winter season. 

 Staff looked at options for installing riser in Pond intake pipe to lift station to minimize 
sedimentation from transferring. 

 Staff looked at sample locations for downstream sampling during the winter months. 

 CPO updated City Manager on biosolids handling options. 

 CPO attended waste diversion meeting with HWMA in Eureka. 

 Staff performed process tests to assist in the operation of the facility. 

 Operator Coppini manage biosolids handling with turning and mixing to get maximum dry. 

 Work through process issues at the plant as we begin discharge to the creek.  

 Completed and submitted monthly electronic annual report for the Regional Board  

 The facility received a total of 19 septic dumps from Roto Rooter & Wyckoff’s totaling 30,300 gallons 
and generating $5,454 in revenue for the facility.  

 No Lateral tests were performed during the month of September 

 Plant DATA updated on SEMS software 

 CPO attended CWEA board meeting in Eureka 

 Monthly eSMR was submitted 

 Staff performed routine process tests in our lab. 

 Prepared monthly sample containers 

 Filled out POs for monthly invoices 

 Monthly samples picked up by NCL 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 47 

 

 Operator Coppini performed general maintenance around the facility 

 Operator Coppini filed online SSO report.  

 Operator Coppini performed the normal in-house weekly and monthly testing and scheduled lab 
work to be done. 

 There were no biosolids disposed of during the month of August. All biosolids were managed on site 
for drying. 

 No violations were reported during the month 

 Total flows through the collection system were 6.616 MG. The average flow was .110 MGD. Of that, 
1.548 MG was pumped to the equalization pond. 

 Influent flows that were treated through the facility totaled 5.067 MG for the month of September. 
The average flow was .169 MGD.  

 Irrigation flows totaled 5.161 MG for the month of August. The average flow was .172 MGD. 
 
 
PUBLIC WORKS: 
 
CITY PROPERTY 

 Firemen’s Park 
o Routine Maintenance, i.e. Mowing Park and Baseball Field. 
o Routine daily walk through to pick-up garbage.  
o Power washed and disinfected play equipment 
o Put in new swing 

 Park Restrooms 
o Routinely cleaned every day of the week including weekends. 
o Installed new soap dispenser in men’s room. 
o Painted over graffiti on park restrooms 

 Russ Park 
o Routine maintenance: Pulling out trash from trash & recycle bins as needed. 
o Picked-up loose garbage from Russ Park. 

 Town Hall 
o Routine mowing and weedeating 
o Pull out trash daily 
o Installed new dimmer switch in lounge. 
o Spoke with Six Rivers Communications regarding emergency communication devices. 
o Remove ewaste. 

 Library 
o Routine mowing and weed eating 

 City Parking Lot 
o Picked up garbage – Routinely as least once a week unless otherwise warranted. 
o Wired all city parking lot lights to one photo cell 

 Main Street Restrooms 
o Routine maintenance: Daily cleaning and stocking of Main Street Restrooms – 7 days a week. 

 Community Center 
o Routine checking of CC when the facility is rented before and after. 
o Showing CC to potential renters as needed 
o Contractor has begun on roof and Design Air is re-plumbing the hood vent system. 
o Replaced outlet covers on three outlets and wired in new outlet. 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 48 

 

o Replaced carpet molding 
o Work on oven, called Town & Country. 

 Childcare Center 
o Rewired new light socket and light 

 Police Department 
o Routine mowing and weed eating 

 Scout Hall - Routine mowing and weedeating  

 Roadsides - Routine mowing and weed eating 

 Public Works 
o Prep and prime gas tank with rust killer paint, paint two coats paint. 
o General clean up of shop and office. 

 
STREETS, SIDEWALKS and STORMDRAINS 

 Begin cleaning East Side Drainage system 

 Worked with City Engineer on road and drainage projects: 4th and Shaw, Washington and Schley, 5th 
Street near Ferndale Housing. 

 Replace decking over Francis Creek at 1319 Main Street. 

 Routine maintenance: Regular maintenance of roadside mowing. 

 Routine picking up trash at the edge of town. 

 Routine maintenance: Continuing to pick-up piles around town as resident call and request removal. 

 Routine maintenance: Sweep Main St., Monday, Wednesday and Friday mornings. 

 Continuing to patch the roads as needed. 

 Removed debris from all the drains and grates around town.  
 
VEHICLE / EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 

 Routine monthly maintenance and weekly maintenance on frequently used equipment. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 Routine paperwork. 

 Dealing with daily work orders as residents call. 

 Viewed Safety videos. 

 Went to Bay West to pick up supplies. 

 Follow up on creek clean-up; check two sites that haven’t complied. Removed small tree in creek. 
 
 
POLICE DEPARTMENT: 
 

 Officer Lee Haldorson has been proceeding through his Field Training Program on the weekends. 

 Chief Smith attended Kiwanis meetings/functions. 

 Chief Smith attended the monthly LECAH meeting. 

 Chief Smith attended the monthly Community Corrections Partnership Executive Committee. 

 Officers Diaz, Bohacik and Frank attended building search training instructed by the FBI. 

 Officers Bohacik, Frank, Stricker and Soltani attended mandatory POST Arrest and Control 
Techniques training at College of the Redwoods. 

 Received new 2013 Dodge Charger to be put into service as a patrol vehicle. 

 Officers provided traffic control and assistance for the high school Prom Parade. 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 49 

 

Police Statistics – September 2012 

SERIOUS CRIMES Number Cleared 

Homicide 0   

Rape 0   

Robbery 0   

Larceny 0  

Assault 0  

Burglary 0   

Vehicle Theft 0  

  

TOTAL 0 

SECONDARY CRIMES 9 

Calls for Service 49 

Reports Written 21 

  

Traffic Citations 4 

Other Citations 0 

Parking Citations 0 

Warnings 37 

ARRESTS 10 

AGENCY ASSISTS 13 

TRAFFIC COLLISIONS 1 

 

 

 

 

  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 50 

 

Section 13b: Commissions, Committees and Other 

 

  City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
 Design Review Minutes for the 07/26/12 8:30am meeting 

 

Vice Chairman Dane Cowan opened the meeting at 8:40 a.m. Committee Members Michael 
Bailey, Michael Sweeney, and Lino Mogni were present along with staff City Manager Jay 
Parrish, City Planner George Williamson and City Clerk Nancy Kaytis-Slocum. Chair Dan Brown 
was absent. Modifications: Committee member comments was moved in front of 5c. 
 

MOTION: (Bailey/Sweeney). Approve minutes from the 6/21/12, 6/28/12 and 7/19/12 meetings 
as presented. Unanimous. 
 

Design Review Process - City Planner George Williamson explained that language on page 6 of 
the packet came from the Zoning Ordinance. Michael Bailey had a concern with page 9, middle 
“Consult with City Staff to determine if your project requires a Design Review Use Permit 
application.” He was also concerned about paint colors, the definition of an emergency repair. 
Planner Williamson made note of the changes. Also discussed is having a letter instead of a call 
to the applicant informing them of the acceptance of their application so that there is a paper 
trail. Staff pointed out the space at the bottom of the application where it provides a space to 
write the date the applicant was notified, as well as a space to mark when the project is finaled. 
There was more discussion about the notification process. Vice Chair Cowan suggested a 
disclaimer on the application that if the applicant changes the approved project, it will have to 
come back before the Design Review Committee. Also discussed were before and after photos; 
a list of some of the things the applicant may need to present with the application, not needed 
is the requirement of a plot plan when the footprint is not changing. Committee member 
Sweeney suggested wording that staff determines if CEQA is necessary, the project would go to 
Planwest, then to the Design Review Committee. He also thought check boxes on the 
application would be a good idea. There was further discussion on the CEQA process. Planner 
Williamson will make changes and bring back before the committee. 
 

Design Review Manual: Planner Williamson discussed the preparation scope and noted that the 
preliminary work would be done by the Committee; Planwest would not become involved until 
Task 6. A user guide will be a “bible” for staff and the community. Williamson left a copy of the 
Samoa manual for review. 
 

Committee Comments: Planner Williamson explained that the Historic and Cultural Resources 
Element was adopted by the City Council in February. The approved element should be online 
for reference on our web page. 
 

Final Procedure for DR Applications- Committee member Bailey brought several applications 
forward that he wanted to discuss with the group; 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 51 

 

1. 1238 Main Street; Bailey felt the contractor did a poor job of joining the new siding to 
the old, and that the paint does not match. Vice Chair Cowan asked if the applicant had 
done what was applied for, and if so, to sign off on it, as the committee has no control 
over the contractor that is chosen by the applicant. Bailey signed off. 

2. 460 Main Street; replace awning signs. Bailey felt there were too many other signs, no 
street number noted on building, and a flashing neon open sign; however, he signed off 
on what had been requested by the applicant. 

3. 393 Main Street; remove built on lean-to and eventually build a second exit from 
upstairs of house. The project has not been completed due to lack of money. He 
questioned if there is an expiration date on the application. 

4. 1400C Main Street; landscaped sign had previously been approved, other signs not. 
Bailey remarked that the neon closed sign shines all night, neon open sign in window, 
other signs removed as stated, and signed off on it. 

5. 358 Main Street – paint bare white spot above store. Never completed and won’t be. 
Remove application from list. 
 

In addition, the following applications were taken by the committee members: Dane Cowan: 
1117 1103 1019 1102 1018; Lino Mogni: 1003 0916 0914; Michael Bailey: 0912 0910 0911 0909 
1213 1214; Michael Sweeney: 1005 1009 1010 1013 1014. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 10:10AM. The next meeting regular meeting will be August 23, 2012. 
 

Respectfully submitted, Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 
 

  City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
Design Review Minutes for the 08/9/12 8:30am meeting 

 

Chairman Dan Brown opened the meeting at 8:33 a.m. Committee Members Michael Sweeney, 
Lino Mogni, Michael Bailey and Dane Cowan along with staff City Manager Jay Parrish and 
Deputy City Clerk Brianna Smith were present.  
 

219 Francis Street- Chairman Dan Brown went over the letter that City Manager Parrish sent to 
Teruko McCarthy with the Committee. City Manager Jay Parrish explained to the committee 
that the resident at 219 Francis Street had removed her door without going through the proper 
process and doing further research found the door to be historically significant. City Manager 
Parrish explained that he had spoke with Ms. McCarthy and let her know that she needed to file 
a Design Review Application and that since her house is a contributing building in the Historical 
District, that staff will refer the project to the City Planner for a CEQA review, if she would like. 
Also it was explained if she restores the door to its original place then City review would not be 
required. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 9:13AM. The next meeting regular meeting will be August 23, 2012 
 
Respectfully submitted: Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk signing for Brianna Smith, Dep Clerk  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 52 

 

  City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
 Design Review Minutes for the 9/20/12 8:30am meeting 

 
Chair Dan Brown opened the meeting at 8:30 a.m. Committee Members Dane Cowan and Lino 
Mogni were present along with staff City Manager Jay Parrish and City Clerk Nancy Kaytis-
Slocum. Michael Bailey and Michael Sweeney were absent.  
 
580 Main Street #2; Sign for music store window. MOTION: (Cowan/Mogni) Approve the sign as 
presented. All in favor. 
 
375A Main Street: 20 x 30’ woodwork shop. The committee members advised the applicant 
that they need a written description, paint chips, roofing material and a siding sample before 
they can approve the project. This is tabled to the next meeting. 
 
161 Francis Street paint colors: MOTION: (Cowan/Mogni) Approve the paint colors for the 
house. If applicant chooses to install shutters, he will have to return to the committee with that 
Design Review request. All in favor. 
 
Under Committee Member Comments staff was directed to present the committee with 
written project descriptions, a location map with North arrow, paint chips and materials, as well 
as a visible street address. Dan Brown advised that he would continue as chair until next month. 
He has work schedule conflicts. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:07am. The next regular meeting will be September 27, 2012. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum 
City Clerk 
  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 53 

 

C i t y  o f  F e r n d a l e ,  H u m b o l d t  C o u n t y ,  C a l i f o r n i a  U S A  
Minutes for Planning Commission Meeting of September 19, 2012 

 
Study Session: Vice Chair Dan Brown called the study session to order at 6:30pm. Present were 
Commissioners Uffe Christiansen and Lino Mogni along with staff City Planner George Williamson and 
City Clerk Nancy Kaytis-Slocum. Planner George Williamson explained that the city is working on the 
Safety Element of the General Plan, and that this section has to do with Flooding and Drainage Hazards. 
He introduced the guests Sherry Constancio, P.E.; Engineer, Water Resources, North Coast Flood 
Management Coordinator and Reginald Kennedy, Service Hydrologist, Meteorologist for the National 
Weather Service.  
 
P.E. Sherry Constancio and Meteorologist Reginald Kennedy explained the roles of their organizations 
which include flooding of the Eel River, local warnings and impacts, weather patterns and flood 
forecasts. They also offer flood fight training. The handouts give computer websites, impact information 
and monitor/flood stages at Fernbridge. 
 
Call to Order: Vice Chair Dan Brown called the Regular Planning Commission meeting to order at 
7:20pm.  Commissioners Uffe Christiansen and Lino Mogni along with staff City Planner George 
Williamson and City Clerk Nancy Kaytis-Slocum were present with Jorgen Von Frausing-Borch and Trevor 
Harper absent. Those in attendance pledged allegiance to the flag. MOTION: (Christiansen/Mogni). The 
August 29, 2012 minutes were unanimously approved. 
 
Revocable Easement for E-Street:  City Clerk Nancy Kaytis-Slocum explained that Mr. Hooley had 
retracted his request for a revocable easement and that he would be removing the fence on E Street by 
11/15/12. Staff recommends no further action on this item. 
 
Safety Element Update, Chapter 5.0, Flooding and Drainage Hazards:  City Planner George Williamson 
will be adding some of the information we received from tonight’s speakers to this section. He went 
over the chapter with the Commission and felt that the benefits of the Safety Element would be seen 
when policy and implementation is developed: educational materials will come out of this and 
preparation opportunities. In October, we will be dealing with Fire Hazards. 
 
The next regular meeting will be October 17, 2012. The meeting was adjourned at 7:42PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum 
City Clerk 
  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 54 

 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 

Sign Ordinance Committee Minutes for the 10/4/12 2:30 pm meeting 
 
Chairman Michael Bailey opened the meeting at 2:35 pm.  Committee members 
Michael Sweeney, Trevor Harper and Karen Pingitore were present.  Committee 
member Phil Ostler was absent.  City Manager Jay Parrish was in attendance. 
 
No modifications to agenda 
 
July 19, 2012 Minutes:  MOTION: Approve minutes. (Pingitore/Harper).  All in favor. 
 
No public comment. 
 
BUSINESS 
A. Sign Ordinance Publicity 
 
Referring back to the July 19, 2012 meeting the Committee reviewed the options 
available to update the community on the mission and progress of the Committee.  The 
Committee reviewed a revised letter to the business community prepared for the July 
meeting by City Manager Parrish.   The intent of this letter is to inform business and 
building owners of the progress of the Committee to date through direct mail.  The vast 
majority of the Sign Ordinance update would affect business and building owners in the 
Historic District/Design Control Combining zone so it made sense to direct this letter to 
these entities.  The Committee believed the best way to inform the general public of 
Committee progress was through an article in the Ferndale Enterprise.  The City 
Manager will talk to Caroline Titus of the Ferndale Enterprise to determine the best 
approach such as a letter to the editor or an article submitted to the paper for 
publication in an upcoming issue.   
 
As for the letter to the business community, the agenda had this item for discussion 
rather than an action item.  According to protocol, the majority of the Committee can 
change an item from discussion to action.  A vote to do exactly that was unanimous.  
Subsequently, a motion was made and seconded to approve the revised letter to the 
business community and requested that staff mail this letter directly to business and 
building owners in the Historic District/Design Control Combining zone.  
 
MOTION: Approve letter to business community. (Pingitore/Harper).  All in favor. 
 
B. Review, Add, Revise and Approve the following;  

i. Proposed Sign Ordinance Outline-Draft 2   
ii. 1001 Background, Purpose and Scope-Rev. 1A.  
iii. 1002 Sign Definitions, Rev. 1A.  
iv. 1004.1 General Sign Regulations, Rev. 1A.   
v. 1004.2 Miscellaneous Business Signs, Rev. 1A  

1002 Sign Definitions, Rev. 1A.  
 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 55 

 

Chairman Bailey presented the above material that was revised based on discussion 
and edits during previous meetings.  Discussion focused on definitions that clarify the 
distinction between Grandfathered Signs, Historic Significance Signs, and Illegal Use 
Signs as subsets of Non-Conforming Use Signs. 
 

NON-CONFORMING USE SIGN: A sign that was lawfully constructed or 
installed prior to the adoption or amendment of this ordinance and was in 
compliance with all of the provisions of this ordinance then in effect, but which 
does not presently comply with this ordinance.   
 
GRANDFATHERED SIGN: A grandfathered sign is a non-conforming sign which 

legally existed and is allowed to remain, due to some special circumstance, even 
though it may not meet the terms of this ordinance 
 
HISTORIC SIGNIFICANCE OR HISTORIC PLAQUE: An business sign, 

identification sign or marker announcing the location of any feature, place or 
building found to be historically significant and authorized or erected by the City 
Council, or a federal, or state authority. 
 
ILLEGAL USE SIGN: A sign that served a permitted use that was modified by 
the property owner without permit or is otherwise in violation of any section of this 
ordinance, and which has not received "nonconforming status" or that 
nonconforming use has expired. An Illegal Use Sign is by definition unlawful and 
subject to abatement. 
 

Chairman Bailey noted that it is highly likely that a sign that might currently be described 
as a Non-Conforming Use Sign could undergo a change in status to a Grandfathered 
Sign, a Historic Significance Sign, or an Illegal Use Sign upon adoption of this 
ordinance.  A change in status might allow a Grandfathered Sign or a Historic 
Significance Sign to remain as legal, non-conforming signs.  A change in status from 
non-conforming use to illegal use would result in such as sign becoming unlawful and 
subject to abatement. 
 
1004.1 General Sign Regulations, Rev. 1A.   
 
In reviewing revised language in Section 1004.1, Chairman Bailey brought to the 
attention of the Committee a new section on Exceptions.  The purpose of this section 
would be to account for unique and restrictive conditions posed by a particular site or 
building that would result in hardship or inequitable application of sign regulations.  
 

1004.1.11 Exceptions – In order to prevent undue hardship or inequitable 

application of this chapter, the Planning Commission may grant an exception 
from any maximum standard of this chapter for a particular application. The intent 
of such exception is not to grant special privilege to any property owner, but 
rather to assure fair and equitable treatment of properties that have unusual 
location, configuration and graphic communication problems.  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 56 

 

 
Where practical difficulties, unique site or building design, or other physical 
restrictions on the land or buildings not generally shared by other properties 
result from the strict application of the requirements of this Section, exceptions 
from such requirements may be granted by the Planning Commission pursuant to 
Section 1006.3 Special Permits; provided, however, that such exceptions from 
the provision is prohibited elsewhere in this Ordinance. 

 
This section on Exceptions would serve a function similar to a Variance for land use 
permits where unique conditions make it difficult if not impossible to comply with specific 
regulations. 
 
1004.2 Miscellaneous Business Signs, Rev. 1A 
 
Discussion ensued on Miscellaneous Business Signs specifically section 1004.2.1.3 
Off-site temporary directional signs.  This section essentially allows Temporary 
Directional Signs in all zones subject restrictions set forth in Section 1004.2.1. On-site 
directional signs and to the following six restrictions: 
 

1. Signs must be for directing traffic to a temporary, special community event;  
2. A maximum of four (4) signs are allowed per event;  
3. Only one (1) sign may be placed at a street intersection;  
4. No sign may be erected in the right of way without obtaining a special use 
permit;  
5. Such signs shall not be erected more than ten (10) calendar days prior to the 
date of the advertised event and shall be removed within forty-eight (48) hours of 
the end of the advertised event;  
6. No sign shall be located more than one (1) mile from the location of the 
advertised event. 

 
The language in this section avoids concerns about the placement of sandwich board 
signs with regards to American for Disability Act (ADA) access.  Traditional sandwich 
board signs will be addressed under Temporary Signs.  
 
Having concluded discussion on items i – v, Chairman Bailey asked for a motion to 
forward these items to the Planning Commission.   
 
MOTION: Approve forwarding draft ordinance sections i – v to the Planning 
Commission. (Sweeney/Pingitore).  All in favor. 
  
C. Review Committee Inputs for Prohibited or Illegal Signs, Nonconforming Signs and 
Unregulated or Exempt Signs  
 
 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 57 

 

Chairman Bailey introduced new language as the first reading for Committee 
discussion, inputs and recommendation for Section 1004.3 Prohibited or Illegal Signs, 
Nonconforming Signs, and Unregulated or Exempt Signs.   
 
Chairman Bailey pointed out that general sign rules outlined in Section 1004.1 will apply 
where no specific rule is shown in this section (1004.3) and specific rules in this section 
will override general sign rules. Specific sign types listed in this section may also be 
listed and regulated in other sections of this ordinance, and the most restrictive 
requirement shall apply. 
 
Section 1004.3.1 Generally Prohibited Signs lists 15 sign types that are prohibited: 
 

1. Signs which emit odor, noise, smoke, flame or visible matter other than light.  
2. Signs or portions of signs that move except flags, banners, streamers or 
pennants. This includes sign walkers.  
3. No sign shall use a beacon, strobe light or exposed light bulb which exceeds 
seventy five (75) watts.  
4. No sign shall be erected in such a manner that any portion of the sign or its 
support is attached to, or will interfere with, the free use of any fire escape, 
entrance, exit, stairway, door ventilator, window or standpipe. This includes any 
sign that obstructs any opening intended to provide light, air or ingress and 
egress for any building.  
5. No sign shall be erected or placed within 15 feet of a fire hydrant, on utility 
poles, traffic control signs or in the public right-of-way, except as specifically 
authorized by this ordinance or by government authority.  
6. Signs burned into, cut, or otherwise marked on or affixed to a rock, tree, or 
other natural feature of the landscape.  
7. Portable signs are considered temporary or special purpose signs, which 
because of their manner of construction, design and use create unique problems 
of safety, regulation and enforcement. Due to the aforementioned conditions, the 
use of portable signs is prohibited except for those specific cases permitted 
elsewhere in this ordinance.  
8. Signs placed on vehicles or trailers which are parked or located for the primary 
purpose of displaying said sign.  
9. Signs indicating a home occupation, including child care.  
10. Abandoned signs or any sign structure or frame no longer containing a sign 
and classified as abandoned.  
11. Any sign erected without a permit that is required to have a permit is an 
illegal sign. Upon notice a use permit for said sign shall be submitted to City Hall 
staff for determination if a permit may be issued.  
12. Any sign not lawfully existing prior to the enactment of this ordinance shall 
not become a legal sign by the enactment of this ordinance and remains an 
illegal sign and subject to abatement. 
13. No sign shall contain statements, words, pictures, or other representations 
which are in reference to obscene matter which violate the Cal. Penal Code §§ 
311 et seq.  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 58 

 

14. A sign supported in whole or in part by cables or guy wires, or that has cables 
or guy wires extending to or from it cannot legally be erected.  
15. Any sign that meets the definition of Illegal Use contained in this ordinance, 
has had a nonconforming COS to illegal use issued, or any other sign not 
expressly permitted by this Sign Ordinance. 

 
In addition, Section 1004.3.2 Specifically Prohibited Signs lists 9 signs  
specifically prohibited from being erected or maintained within the city limits.  
 

1. Animated or Moving Message Signs –  
2. Billboard or Poster-board Signs – .  
3. Derelict Signs –  
4. Flashing Signs –.  
5. Inflatable Sign –  
6. Misleading or Misdirecting Signs –  
7. Public Menace or Peril Signs –  
8. Revolving or Rotating Signs –  
9. Roof Signs – 

  
Discussion sought to clarify the difference between billboards and poster-board signs.  
Chairman Bailey believed that poster-board signs preceded billboards as “posters” were 
literally applied to signs.  Overtime, poster-boards became billboards though they 
remain somewhat synonymous.  Clarification of the term derelict signs concluded that 
they were the same as abandoned or obsolete signs. 
 
Language in Section 1004.3.3 Illegally Erected Signs was introduced.  Essentially this 
section incorporates enforcement language that gives the City specific authority to do 
something about illegal signs that are without “existing non-conforming status.”  This 
section allows the City to remove any sign in direct violation of this ordinance after due 
process.  If the permit holder, owner of the sign or owner of the site on which the sign is 
located does not remove the sign within a reasonable time period as determined by the 
Administrative Official, the City will charge a sign recovery fee in accordance with the 
City fee schedule to recover such signs. 
 
Discussion raised the issue as to whether the City has a sign recovery fee as part of its 
overall fee schedule and, does the City have an established “fine schedule” for non-
compliance.  The answers were not immediately apparent and will be sought prior to the 
next scheduled meeting. 
 
Section 1004.4 Nonconforming signs language was presented for discussion by 
Chairman Bailey.  Specifically, Section 1004.4.1 presents the sign types that are 
defined as Nonconforming Signs: 
 

1. Abandoned or Obsolete Signs – after more than ninety (90) days  
2. Grandfathered Signs  
3. Historically Significant Signs  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 59 

 

4. Any sign lawfully existing with permit prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, which does not comply with the current requirements of this ordinance 
 

Discussions lead to additional language to Historically Significant Signs as follows:  
 

“…which do not comply with the current requirements of this ordinance.” 
 

Language in Section 1004.4.2 presents the seven conditions necessary for a Change in 
Status (COS) will be issued by the City Manager: 

1. A change in ownership of the business or property, or a different business 
name will result in a COS to abandon or obsolete..  
2. The sign is damaged, destroyed, expanded, relocated, replaced, structurally 
altered, deteriorated by any means or has face changes where the cost of the 
work/repair exceeds fifty (50) percent of the replacement cost of the sign, as 
determined by the City Building Inspector, and/or result in a greater degree of 
nonconformity, will result in a COS to Illegal Use.  
3. If a sign or sign structure is removed for maintenance for more than sixty (60) 
days it will result in a COS to abandoned.  
4. When the use of the premises or individual tenant space, upon which the sign 
is located or based, changes it will result in a COS to abandoned.  
5. The modification, use or maintenance of Nonconforming Signs without 
obtaining a use permit from the City, or failure to properly maintain the sign will 
result in a COS to Illegal Use.  
6. When the sign’s amortization period has expired it will result in a COS to Illegal 
Use.  
7.  Any sign lawfully existing with permit prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, which does not comply with the current requirements of this 
ordinance, once identified by a city official, will result in a COS to Nonconforming 
Use being issued by the City Manager. 
8. Any property or business owner affected by a COS may apply for an 
exemption to the Planning Commission based upon the claim that the subject 
sign meets the definition of a Grandfathered or Historically Significant Sign listed 
in Section 1002.1 within 30 days of notification. If the exception is granted, a new 
COS will be issued by the City Manager for the appropriate nonconforming 
status. 

 
Committee review and discussion lead to changed language in item 3 from “If a sign or 
sign structure is removed for maintenance for more than sixty (60) days it will result in a 
COS to abandoned” to “…removed for maintenance the City must be notified more than 
60 days  and “it may result in a COS to abandoned if the city is not notified in writing, by 
the sign or property owner, of an extenuating circumstance.” 
 
Language in Section 1004.4.4 specifies the duration of a Nonconforming sign as the 
amortization period.  The amortization period will end when a COS is triggered as 
specified below, at which time the sign will be declared unlawful and removed.  The 
specific triggers include: 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 60 

 

 
1. Nonconforming Signs – A legally conforming sign that becomes 
nonconforming shall be a nonconforming sign for five years.  
2. Grandfathered Signs – A Nonconforming Sign can be grandfathered by the 
Planning Commission upon submission of a Use Permit stating a financial 
hardship or an architectural or aesthetic benefit to the cityscape. Once declared 
grandfathered, the sign shall be a nonconforming sign for 15 years.  
3. Historically Significant Signs – A nonconforming sign that has been 
declared, by the Planning Commission or City Council, to have historical 
significance will remain nonconforming indefinitely as long as its condition does 
not trigger a COS. 
 

During the meeting Chairman Bailey offered additional language at the end of Item 1 
Nonconforming Signs as follows:  
 

“…as long as its condition does not trigger a COS.  Once nonconforming signs 
are removed completely, or they have been repaired substantially, as outlined in 
Section 1004.4.2 above, any right to the continuation of the nonconformity 
terminates.” 

 
At some time in the future, the City will come up with a list of Grandfathered and 
Historically Significant signs. 
 
Section 1004.4.5 lists six (6) items that shall be contained in a notice by certified return 
receipt mail or email to the business and owner of the land where each nonconforming 
sign is located.  Language in the last sentence of Item 6 was modified to read 
“However, any failure to give notice shall not invalidate any proceeding to enforce this 
section to abate any sign, or to punish any sign violation.” 
 
The Committee reviewed language in Section 1004.4.6 which refers to Removal of 
Unlawful and Abandoned Signs.  Further, the Committee reviewed language pertaining 
to Section 1004.5 Unregulated or Exempt Signs.  The Committee changed language 
under Section 1004.5.2 which specifies building address or house numbers signs.  
State law requires address numbers or building numbers in a plainly legible and visible 
manner that is visible from the street fronting the property for the purpose of fire 
protection and as a benefit to the general public (California Residential Code of 
Regulations, Title 24, Part 2.5).  This section presents 4 requirements for address 
numbers.  The Committee discussed the need to combine Requirement 2 and 3 to 
avoid treating residential property more restrictive than commercial zoned property 
which poses “freedom of speech” issues. 
 
Next, the Committee edited section 1004.5.4 Flags Bearing an Official Design from 
“This exemption does not apply to corporate flags…” to “This exemption does not apply 
to corporate or commercial flags…”  
 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 61 

 

Lastly, the Committee edited Section 1004.5.12 Political, Social Issue, Special Event, 
and Seasonal or Public Interest Event Signs Items 1 and 4 as follows: 
 

1.  They are placed on private property with the property owner’s consent or are 
placed on public property used for traditional public forums.  They cannot be 
placed on city property such as the Police Station or City Hall without permission 
of a city official. 

4.  If the signs are related to an event that has a specific date or period they 
cannot be posted more than 60 30 days prior and must be removed within 14 
days 48 hours after the conclusion of the event to which they relate.  A sign that 
is not removed with be removed by the City at the expense of the candidate, 
organization or person responsible for posting the sign. 

 
Chairman Bailey will bring back these sections with corrections for review and approval 
at the next meeting. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
No correspondence was received by the Committee. 
 
The next regular meeting will be October 17, 2012 at 2:30 pm.  The meeting was 
adjourned at 5:10 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 
 
 Michael Sweeney 

 
 

  



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 62 

 

Section 13c: Council Reports and Comments   

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 63 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 64 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 65 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 66 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 67 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 68 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 69 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 70 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 71 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 72 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 73 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 74 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 75 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 76 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 77 

 

 

 



November 1, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 78 

 

 
  

 

 

 
 
 
 

Section 14: Adjourn 
 


